CONTOOCOOK VALLEY SCHOOL DISTRICT

OFFICE OF THE SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS
Peter borough, New Hampshire

EDUCATION COMMITTEE

Monday, February 12, 2007
7:00 pm.
SAU Office

Attendees: Christy Greene, Bill McKinnon, Gail Cromwell, Butch Estey, Bart Goodeve,
Beverly Bacon, Tom Welden, Ray Cote, Craig Hicks, Mary Allen, Keith
Burke, Linda Potter, Dick Dunning, Sue Dell, Gib West, Joe Hayes

Christy Greene called the meeting to order at 7:05 p.m.

1. Approval of Minutes
» Meeting of January 31,2007
Ray Cote moved to aaept the minutes of the January 31, 2007 neeting. Beverly
Bacon second. Butch Estey abstained. All esein favor.

Gail Cromwell said that she could not tell what we were asking the foreign language
teachers to do. Christy Greene said that they did not give them a specific charge. The
language teachers asked if they put all of the work and effort together, would it make a
difference.

Ray Cote asked what the recommendation was for when foreign language should be
taught. Keith Burke asked based on what. Ray said based on good sound education.
Bart Goodeve said that Ray’s question could be answered in terms of the students the
high school is receiving. Christy asked what we would be looking for. Bart said if the
middle school program is effective we will hear that. Christy said her difficulty with
“when” is that as young as we can go is as optimal as it can be. Ray said his view is
“when” with existing budgetary constraints. We don’t have to debate that starting in
kindergarten is the best thing to do. We don’t have the time or the money. We are
currently affording two years outside of the high school. Ray asked if those were the best
two years to do this. Could we do more at the middle school? Ray said he didn’t know.
Craig Hicks asked who the group is. Keith said that there is a foreign language
committee. Craig said that he assumes that we have a spectrum. Sue Dell said that there
is at least one member of the middle school staff on the committee.

Christy asked if it would be worth our while to have a conference with the elementary
school Principals for input.

Mary Allen said that she would encourage the committee to think outside the box. We
are looking at the possibility of teaching just one language every year. What would that
look like? Mary said that if we could get exposure to any foreign language at any level it
opens a window to help students think in a different way. To expose students to foreign



language and encourage the abilities of those students that would pick up on it would be
the goal. Mary asked if there was a model somewhere.

Bart said that we have seemed to forget why this discussion is underway. The middle
school resources were at risk to make additional resources available for health. What we
are asking them to do is to make sure we are getting the most out of the resources that we
have now. They need to make the case. He did not recall that the challenge was to
rethink our foreign language from kindergarten through twelve.

Gail Cromwell said that she is interested in hearing from the two middle school
Principals as to how the present program fits into their schedule and what they are able to
achieve.

Christy said that a long time ago we talked about reviewing all of the subjects that we
teach in this district. We reviewed core academics. We actually reviewed health
recently. The charge was to look at it district wide K-12. She said that this might have
been the crisis point of review.

Bart said that we are suffering from a lack of context. What are we doing with the
resources that we have and what would we like to do with the program?

Bill McKinnon said that he would like the two middle schools present to respond.

Keith said that this is what Ray has asked. He did not think it was fair for them to
provide a program evaluation off the top of their head tonight.

Dick Dunning said that he would need more clarification. The choices are limited
because it is resources. Dick said that he did not think that it was realistic to look at it K-
12 because of a lack of resources. The other question becomes do we want to go to one
language. If we do, who makes that decision, the Board or the Administrators? The
Board needs to make a decision on where they want to make a stand. Dick asked where
they wanted him to go and what they wanted him to deliver.

Craig Hicks said that he thinks we all agree that a second language is good for a lot of
kids but so are a lot of other things. We are talking about resources. Title I helps
students with reading and math which helps students get over the hurdle and get back into
regular classes. He doesn’t want it to be all or nothing. Secondly, he wanted to
understand if having dual languages was working in the middle school.

Dick Dunning said that it is helpful to have two languages. He said that students
appreciate the culture by experiencing it at a very basic level. Dick said that it is not a
Level I course.

Christy said that we are trying to shape some next steps for this committee to answer.
Gib West said that the other piece is “is this an enrichment philosophy”. Ultimately, the
foreign language students we are speaking of are those who aspired to a foreign language
because it was going to get them something more than a general student would get. Gib
asked if this was the hope of the Board. Gib added that this is an elective.

Tom Welden said that he doesn’t like to reinvent the wheel all of the time. He would like
to look at half a dozen of the other better schools in the State. He feels that we went
backwards in the foreign language area. Tom said that culture can be learned in other
ways such as taking history classes.

Bart Goodeve liked the idea. Bart said that we asked for the Foreign Language teacher’s
data and presentation that they gave that evening.

Gail wondered if we could ask the Principals how it is working out with the new health
integration.



Christy said that it is one of the Board’s goals to look at the Health and Language
curriculum.

Gib said that part of the delivery was training for staff and that has not happened yet.
Christy said that we can put this on the next agenda.

Christy said we have enrichment vs. credit set up currently in the middle schools. She
asked if this is how we want to leave it. Is the cultural exposure at the middle school
effective? Bart asked if it was an effective preparation for what they do at the high
school. Christy said that with the granting of alternative credit it may change what
students are looking for in world language areas.

Linda Potter said that we are asking the high school to determine if the middle school
program is effective without providing a tool of measurement. She said that she had
concern with this request.

Bart said that we ask community people how they feel about the students they receive in
the work place. This is the only lens he is looking for.

Bill McKinnon asked if the German teacher is on the committee. Her statement that
German is the number one exporter in the world is inaccurate. He asked if we should
have people like that on the committee.

Bart said that it was a good presentation. It couldn’t go into a lot of depth as to where the
data came from.

Keith Burke said that he thought that we could answer the question without offending
anyone. It is clear what we need to do.

2. Discuss 16 Core Credit Changefor Graduation
Christy said that some of the language needed to be cleaned up around this change. The
high school recommends the proposed 16 core credits for the class of 2010 which is our
current freshmen class.
Mary asked if what we are looking for is approval to implement this for the class of 2010.
Gail wanted to look at alternative credit language under policy IKF.

3. Posgtion on Academic Placement of Students
Keith said that he received information from the high school just prior to tonight’s
meeting. (see attachment #1) Keith said they were asked to craft a statement.
Keith said what they tried to do was outline the methods by which students are placed.
If disagreements exist procedures were outlined.
Sue Dell said that in this process what we want to do is bring forward the reasons why a
student has been recommended for a given placement. The teacher may not have
adequately considered certain points. If a parent insists that a student be placed
elsewhere there is no appeal to the Principal. The student could pursue the course with
the resolutions listed.
Sue said an example is the lowa test that is given to Algebra students. We pay attention
to that when making a recommendation. If a teacher feels that the student is ready
despite the test results the student may be placed in the requested course.
Tom asked for the reason that a student would receive a punitive grade when
withdrawing from a course. Sue Dell said that they don’t want this to be done lightly.
Students could float from class to class with little thought in the course selection process.



Tom Welden said that the syllabus do not always fully disclose what the student is going
to get into. He was unsure if it was uniform.

Joe Hayes said that each teacher provides their own expectations. Sue Dell said that the
honors classes are very careful to outline their courses.

Joe said that in any class students would drop out when it gets too hard. If a student in a
high level course makes a choice to be in a class we need some reassurance that they are
going to put forth their best foot. Normally, in seven days a student may drop without a
WF (withdraw fail) for a course.

Bart said that the WF threat might prevent students from enrolling in a given course. He
said it seemed to be overkill.

Keith asked if the grade for a prerequisite course would be the same for every
prerequisite course. Joe Hayes said that it did differ in foreign languages. Keith said that
if it differs then we need to know why. Sue Dell asked at what point students realize
success on the next level. This is where they have landed on their prerequisite grade.
Keith said that on #3 of the attachment, it indicates sufficient mastery. What is sufficient
mastery?

Keith asked what the indicator for #4 on the attachment was. Sue said that the indicator
is what has been learned and what comes next. If a student needs to focus on certain
skills and the next level does not focus on those skills, it could determine if a student
should take that course. Keith said that we need to articulate the guidelines more. If you
are making a decision, we need to know where to look. Keith asked what entrance exams
is referenced. Which courses have them and what is the cut-off grade?

Joe asked if the criterion would shift. He said that he is unsure how we come up with the
eligibility details. Sue clarified that we did not want to include this information in the
Program of Studies but rather that we had it as back-up. Keith confirmed.

Sue confirmed that we needed articulation for the teachers.

Keith said that #5 on the attachment under the resolution section could occur for several
reasons. Because of the way the schedule is structured a number of things can happen. If
a student decides to get into certain courses their schedule is structured in a certain way.
If a student drops a course, there may not be a course in the block that the drop exists for
a student to fill with a similar course. If there is a regular course, and the student moves
into it, how would the grade be averaged? Keith said that clarification was needed. If
they do move to another course they take the grade from the original course with them.
Mary Allen asked why a student would not take their grade with them if the student chose
to go to another level course. Joe Hayes said that if a student goes to an AP course and
the teacher is working along and the student decides that it is too hard there is no lower
level course. They don’t want to take math anywhere. Mary asked why it wouldn’t be
the same for #4 and #5.

Joe Hayes said that if he is the teacher and a student petitions to take a course and the
students comes into the course and the student is doing alright, what does he give the
student for a grade.

Bart said that if the teacher decides that the student is not well served that is o.k.

If the student decides that he is not well served then it is decided that the student is going
to under challenge themselves. Bart asked why we can’t let the students decide for
themselves. Why does it have to be a WF?



Joe said that this does not just occur in honors level courses. The policy right now is that
students who drop out of a course after a period of time receive a WF.

Bart said that the teacher can make a decision but the student cannot make a decision
without penalty.

Joe said that it is currently a seven day period to drop from a course without penalty. If
you change the rules for this group there would be an inconsistency.

Gail agreed that students should be allowed to drop without penalty. She said that we
should encourage students to make a stab at these courses.

Keith said that it seems to him that if a student withdraws from a course they withdraw
with a certain status either WF or WP. Keith said that he would like to discuss this with
the leadership team.

Craig said that when looking at the 05/06 year end grades, 205 WF’s existed. 120 W’s
existed. He doesn’t want to penalize the student if they are not going to fully participate.
Keith asked how we allocate the resources. We maintain the standard and the students
need to meet them. They can try and step down.

Joe Hayes said that the point being missed is that a lot of students on their own will make
a judgment that they are not willing to continue in a course. The penalty system for
dropping a course will help keep a kid in a course and quite possibly do well.

Christy said that we are forgetting the parent. One would hope that the parent is making
some effort if this is accurate that the student can’t do the work.

Craig said that his assumption is that if we got rid of the “F” portion of grades, how many
would have gotten above the “D” level. There is a good group of kids that want to take a
certain course and keeping kids in the class might bring the class down.

Mary Allen said that if she was a parent she would be confused by the considerations
listed. For the sake of the student, we should tighten up the language. If the requirement
to get into a certain course is determined and we state that each course has its own
criterion it should be listed.

Sue Dell said that the purpose of the attachment is for the Board. In the Program of
Studies, the prerequisites are listed under each course.

Mary said that she wants clarity.

Sue said that she wants anyone who asks the question knows what kinds of
considerations have been given to a student when placing them.

Gail asked about the last sentence of the belief statement “Therefore, a student’s
academic placement is based on demonstrated knowledge and skills and personal desire
to learn”. She had concern that students were being squeezed out of a course. The over
subscribed electives are of concern.

Sue Dell explained how students would gain entry into some of the courses such as
automotive. Joe Hayes said that often times there are too many overqualified students for
a finite number of spaces.

Christy asked what the timeline would be for a parent and a child to know if they could
be in a class that they wanted. Sue Dell said that it would be much shorter, possibly two
weeks.

Gail said that the computer generated scheduling is problematic. Joe said that someone
always doesn’t get what they want.

Christy said that we expect and get so much from our teachers. She hoped that this was
not a division. She hoped that this was an opportunity for all three parties to get together



and have a student soar. Christy said that the whole concept of challenge goes beyond
the high school.
Sue Dell said that the belief is the only thing necessary for the Program of Studies.

Tom Welden requested that we go into Non-Public session at 8:31 p.m. for this
matter.
Regular session resumed at 8:39 p.m.

Gail proposed a change to the belief statement as follows “Therefore, a student’s
academic placement is based on demonstrated knowledge, skills, personal desire to learn
and career plans.

Joe Hayes asked if it meant that a student who felt that they may pursue an education in
Engineering may have preferred access to certain level course.

Bill McKinnon said that the statement should better make parents aware that they may
override a teacher recommendation.

Keith said that there appears to be consensus with the last statement that Sue Dell read
but that we was unsure about the last sentence of the Belief Statement.

Sue Dell said that we can put it in this year and take it out for the next if it doesn’t work.
Christy said that she would be looking to incorporate this as a district belief for the entire
district in the future.

Butch Estey asked if input from Principals should be gained.

Keith made a note to talk to the Principals at the next meeting as to how they would
include a similar statement into the student handbooks.

4. Other

Meeting ad ourned at 8:53 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Brenda L. Marschok



